
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 9, 2015 AT 6:45 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 

AGENDA 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend City-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 

Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net. 

 

    

      

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

Chairman John Greenwood, Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, 

Scott Pegau, John Baenen, Allen Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (voice vote) 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR (voice vote) 

a. Minutes of May 19, 2015 Public Hearing ............................................................................... Page 2-3 

b. Minutes of May 19, 2015 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ Page 4-9 

c. Minutes of May 27, 2015 Public Hearing ............................................................................... Page 10 

d. Minutes of May 27, 2015 Special Meeting ............................................................................. Page 11-12 

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

a. State of Alaska DNR Public Notice ........................................................................................ Page 13-15 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

a. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker) 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT .............................................................................................................. Page 16-17 

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

a. Review of Proposal for Breakwater Fill Lot ........................................................................... Page 18-53 

i. Proposal from George and Carrie Daskalos................................................. Page 38-53 

b. Resolution 15-09 – Reducing Ground Snow Load Requirement ........................................... Page 54-78 

A resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska, recommending 

to the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to amend Subsection 16.15.2305(d) of 

the Cordova Municipal Code in order to reduce the ground snow load requirement from 

150 pounds per square foot to 100 pounds per square foot 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District ......................... Page 79-97 

A resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska recommending 

to the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to amend Cordova Municipal Code 

Chapter 18.39 to change the requirements in the Waterfront Commercial Park District 

and to amend Chapter 18.08 to change and add definitions to Title 18 

b. Discussion on Resolution 15-07 ............................................................................................. Page 98-100 

11. PENDING CALENDAR 

a. June 2015 Calendar ................................................................................................................. Page 101 

b. July 2015 Calendar ................................................................................................................. Page 102 

12. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

13. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman 

John Greenwood 
 

Commissioners 

Tom Bailer 

Tom McGann 

Scott Pegau 

John Baenen 

Allen Roemhildt 

Mark Frohnapfel 
 

City Planner 

Samantha Greenwood 
 

Assistant Planner 

Leif Stavig 



Planning Commission Public Hearing - Minutes 

May 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING 

MAY 19, 2015 AT 6:30 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 MINUTES  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairman John Greenwood called the Planning Commission Public Hearing to order at 6:30 PM on May 19, 

2015 in the Library Meeting Room. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Present for roll call were Chairman John Greenwood and Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, Allen 

Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel. Scott Pegau was present via teleconference. John Baenen arrived late at 

6:36 PM. 

 

Also present were City Planner, Samantha Greenwood, and Assistant Planner, Leif Stavig. 

 

9 people were in the audience. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

a. Final Plat Request for ‘Subdivision of US Survey 901’ 

b. Final Plat Request for ‘Plat of Subdivision of Tract B-2 of Pebo Subdivision’ 

c. Resolution 15-08 – Code Change for RR3 Rural Residential District 

 

John Harvill, 701 Railroad Ave, was present to speak on Resolution 15-08. He hoped the commission 

would comply with the requests of the Planning Department and go with their recommendations. It will 

improve their development and make it better for people that already own property there and for all future 

development. He also spoke to the ‘Subdivision of US Survey 901.’ Harvill questions taking one acre in 

the middle of nowhere to make a cemetery. The cemetery could fit 2,500 bodies which is bigger than any 

cemetery in town.  

 

M/Bailer S/McGann to take a 10 minute recess. 

Upon voice vote, motion passed 7-0.    

Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

J. Greenwood called the Public Hearing back to order at 6:43 PM. 

 

Steven Schmid, Lot 5 Alpine Falls, wanted to comment on Resolution 15-08. He said that he lives in the 

code change area and is speaking also as the builder for the person who wants the setback change. He 

requested a variance on behalf of the owner and he is hoping the commission can work with them. The 

existing setback is 60 feet, which is excessive. He has never heard of a 60 foot setback. The City had 

already issued a building permit in 2008. There were mistakes made by both his client and the City. His 

client excavated a pad which was 35 feet from the rear setback and installed a septic system. Due to the 

topography it is not economically feasible to move the pad. He is hoping the commission will help his 

client who is going to build a nice home which will bring in extra property taxes.  

 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

 

M/Bailer S/McGann to adjourn the Public Hearing at 6:45 PM. 

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

2 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Public Hearing - Minutes 

May 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

Approved: 

 

 

____________________________ 

John Greenwood, Chair 

 

 

____________________________ 

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

3 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes 
May 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 6 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 19, 2015 AT 6:45 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 MINUTES  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairman John Greenwood called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:45 PM on May 19, 
2015 in the Library Meeting Room. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 

Present for roll call were Chairman John Greenwood and Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, John 

Baenen, Allen Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel. Scott Pegau was present via teleconference. 
 
Also present were City Planner, Samantha Greenwood, and Assistant Planner, Leif Stavig. 
 
9 people were in the audience. 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

M/Bailer S/Roemhildt to approve the agenda for May 19th, 2015. 
Upon roll call vote, motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

M/Bailer S/Roemhildt to approve the Consent Calendar for minutes of April 14th, 2015 and the Regular 
Meeting of April 14th, 2015. 
Upon roll call vote, motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

Bailer said he may have a perceived conflict of interest as he has a piece of property within 300 feet of the 
proposed subdivision (agenda item 9d), but there’s no financial windfall or harm for him so he does not see it 
as a conflict. 
 
Baenen also said that he has a potential conflict of interest due to the same reasons. Pegau said that he thinks 
there is a conflict when the person lives right beside the lot being subdivided.  
 
There was consensus that Bailer did not have a conflict of interest. 
 
Pegau said that he saw a conflict of interest with Baenen as the property is right next to his house and it could 
affect it and his view. Bailer said that he agrees, but that there is no development at this point and as far as they 
know it is going to stay a hillside forever. McGann said that as he reads it, the replat is to establish the “bone 
yard” lot. Pegau said if that is the case he has no problem. There was consensus that Baenen had no conflict of 
interest. 

 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

 

a. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice 

b. Cordova Chamber of Commerce – Letter of Support for Bayside Storage 

c. Northern Lights Electrical – Letter of Support for Bayside Storage 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

4 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes 
May 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 

d. Michael Maxwell – Letter of Support for Bayside Storage 

 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

 

a. Guest Speakers 

 

i. Kristin Carpenter – Copper River Watershed Project 

 

Carpenter said that the Watershed Project has been looking into ways of mitigating the pollution that 
comes from snowmelt and runoff. They have received some money for structural improvements to 
snow storage sites next to aquatic habitat. They have funding to do work at Odiak Pond which will 
happen in June or July. She wanted to talk to the commission about the Second Street snow storage 
area because the engineer’s estimates for the proposed work at that site are $150,000 - $180,000 and 
she wants to be sure the City isn’t planning on disposing of those lots. Carpenter showed pictures and 
engineered drawings for both snow storage areas.  

 

b. Audience Comments regarding agenda items 

 

Gerald Masolini expressed his full support for Jerry and Vicki Blackler’s project. He’s talked to several 
people who support it. Lenny Peterson has told him that the Blacklers can’t build a big enough building. 
Masolini thinks it will be the biggest economic boost to Cordova since they had tanner crabs.  

 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT 

 

S. Greenwood told the commission that City Council approved a mobile kitchen license and land use permit for 
the Breakwater Fill Lot. The lot is still for sale and the land use permit is for less than six months. Proposals for 
the lot are due June 1st and will be at the next Regular Meeting. She said that Ardy Hanson’s request to 
purchase land was also approved by City Council so they have put in an order to survey the lot.  
 
S. Greenwood explained that the upcoming variance request in Alpine Properties Subdivision would allow 
construction faster than the code change would. Once the code changes, the variance would be null. The code 
change takes at least two months.  
 

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 

a. Review of Proposal for Lot 4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park Addition No. 2 

 

M/Bailer S/Frohnapfel to recommend to City Council to approve the proposal from Bayside Storage for Lot 
4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park Addition No. 2. 

 
Bailer said when they looked at this lot a while back they were looking for new business. The last time they 
denied five proposals for the lot. Frohnapfel said he questioned if the building was going to be more than 
one floor. Roemhildt said that he had questions about the proposal. Stavig said that Paul Kelly wanted to 
inform the commission that he couldn’t attend because he would be traveling out of town. McGann said that 
they had hashed this out several times and the commission was clear that this was not something that was 
acceptable. He does not see any changes from the past proposal. Pegau said that there were five proposals 
last time and he knows that one didn’t propose this time because they thought the commission’s desire was a 
new business. Baenen agreed and said there were some good letters from other businesses. J. Greenwood 
said that they had denied this proposal before and for consistency he is not in favor of the proposal.  
 

M/Bailer S/McGann to amend the motion to state: recommend to City Council to maintain ownership of 
Lot 4A, Block 5, North Fill Development Park Addition No. 2 
Upon roll call vote, motion to amend passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

5 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes 
May 19, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 

 Upon roll call vote, main motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

b. Review of Proposal for a Portion of Tract 1A, Ocean Dock Subdivision Addition #2 

 

M/Bailer S/McGann to recommend City Council approve the proposal from Alpine Diesel for a Portion of 
Tract 1A, Ocean Dock Subdivision Addition #2. 
 
Frohnapfel asked several questions about setbacks, access, and assessed value. Frohnapfel said that the 
building would be considered permanent by the IBC. Jerry Blackler said that the building would not have 
doors and that the roof and connexes would be designed to meet the wind load requirement. He said that for 
environmental protection the entire floor area will be excavated down one foot and then have a layer of 
polyurea. Blackler said that they have not developed a drainage plan yet. Tony Schinella, Harbormaster, 
said that snow removal. was something he had thought about and they will deal with it. S. Greenwood said 
that snow removal was something they could deal with in the lease agreement. Baenen said that he 
assumed the building would meet the wind load required by the IBC.  
 
Upon roll call vote, motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

c. Review of Proposal for Lot 13, Block 12, Original Townsite 

 

M/McGann S/Bailer to recommend City Council approve the proposal from Joe Arvidson for Lot 13, 
Block 12, Original Townsite. 
 
McGann said that it was a little lot and Arvidson could be the one to get the most utility out of it. 
 

M/Bailer S/Baenen to amend the motion to add a special condition to dissolve the lot line between the 
properties as a condition of sale. 
Upon roll call vote, motion to amend passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 
Bailer said he did have a concern for the neighbor’s lot and drainage. S. Greenwood said that they will 
require drainage to be addressed.  

 
M/Bailer S/Frohnapfel to amend to add a second special condition that a drainage plan will be 
approved to the satisfaction of the City Engineer before filling. 
Upon roll call vote, motion to amend passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 
Upon roll call vote, main motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

d. Final Plat Request for ‘Subdivision of US Survey 901’ 

 

M/McGann S/Bailer to approve the final plat request for ‘Subdivision of US Survey 901.’ 
 
McGann said that he was confused by the plat until he saw it was for the creation of a bone yard. Bailer 
said that his problem was that it was not an approved use of the Low Density Residential zone. S. 

Greenwood said that this is a private family cemetery, not a business where plots are for sale. There is no 
state statute disallowing a private cemetery. If the issue is with the word “cemetery” than Bailer can make 
an amendment. Bailer said his issue is that once it is recorded it is a cemetery. His other issue is that it is 
creating a landlocked piece of property with no access and that is absurd. S. Greenwood said that Lucas 

Borer (the applicant) has met all requirements needed to present this plat to the Planning Commission. 
There is no State Statute or anything in City Code that requires access. She said that it is the job of the 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

6 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes 
May 19, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 

commission to make discretionary decisions, and if they have issues with the word “cemetery” than they 
can make their concerns heard. Bailer said he has conferred with two licensed surveyors and they said not 
to do this as it doesn’t make sense to add an encumbrance to property. His solution is to send it back to staff 
to have it brought back in a form where it is not a cemetery and to show a viable easement through this 
piece of property. J. Greenwood says that right now Borer owns both pieces of property and when he sells 
the property he can create the easement. Baenen said that there needs to be an easement or platted access to 
the lot. Every surveyor he has spoken with has said it is not recommended. Borer said if the commission 
wants generic language on the plat that there shall be an easement to access, he can do that. The reason they 
didn’t add it is so whoever buys it is not limited to where the easement is going to be. He said he has no 
problem deleting “cemetery” from the plat.  
 
J. Greenwood said he thinks they should refer it back to staff so they can add the plat note properly. Borer 
said he might argue that there is a conflict of interest as he has met the code and that this is coming out of 
the blue from the two that said they may have a conflict of interest. The staff should be able to approve the 
generic language and getting rid of the word cemetery. Stavig said that once it is approved by the 
commission it still has to get approved by City Council and the commission may be having a Special 
Meeting next week. S. Greenwood said that staff could work with Borer and Mark St. Denny (the 
surveyor) to get the changes to the plat. Baenen said that St. Denny was one of the people that he spoke 
with about the access issue. S. Greenwood said that she cannot deny Borer the opportunity to come 
forward with the plat because there is no access. Bailer said that staff could have put the access issue in the 
recommendation.  
 
 M/Bailer S/Baenen to refer this back to staff to address access and remove “cemetery.” 

Upon roll call vote, motion to refer passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

e. Final Plat Request for ‘Plat of Subdivision of Tract B-2 of Pebo Subdivision’  

 

M/Bailer S/McGann to approve the final plat request for ‘Plat of Subdivision of Tract B-2 of Pebo 
Subdivision.’ 
 
S. Greenwood said the plat was creating two tracts from one. Pegau was curious how the plat falls in the 
flood plain map. S. Greenwood said that the new maps, which have not been approved, show it in the 
floodplain. The floodplain would be dealt with if development were to occur if someone wanted to 
subdivide into lots or submitted a building permit. Bailer said he sees where Pegau is coming from, but at 
this point there is no development.  
 
Upon roll call vote, main motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

f. Resolution 15-08 – Code Change for RR3 Rural Residential District 

A resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska recommending to the City 

Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to amend Cordova Municipal Code Chapter 18.21 by 

repealing Subsection 18.21.070(B) and amending section 18.21.080 in order to eliminate the 

minimum lot width requirement and reduce the yard requirements in the RR3 Rural Residential 

District 

 

M/Bailer S/McGann to approve Resolution 15-08. 

 

McGann said he thinks there were some lofty ideals when they created the code, but some of those lots are 
limited in where you can place a house. Baenen asked if the area could just be rezoned Low Density 
Residential. S. Greenwood said there is a very different intent for those districts.  
 
Upon roll call vote, resolution passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

7 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes 
May 19, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 

 

10. PENDING CALENDAR 

 

a. May 2015 Calendar 

b. June 2015 Calendar 

 

Bailer addressed the comment about conflicts of interest. He said there is a difference between a conflict and a 
perceived conflict.  
 
The commission decided to meet at noon on the 27th of May for a Special Meeting for a variance request and 
the plat approval. 
 
Stavig said the resolution from the commission was at the City Council meeting under reports from 
commissions; there was no memo and it wasn’t an action item. There was consensus from the commission to 
have the snow load code change at the next Regular Meeting.  
 

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 

Pegau wanted to comment on parking. He thinks it is important that people can get down to the Harbor area 
around an opener. On the north side of the harbor everything is taken up until the north ramp and the uphill side 
is congested. There’s also limited parking around the businesses. They have had a lot of parking conversations 
and this is a good time to go there to look at it.  
 
McGann appreciated the packets, but he doesn’t think they need the lease agreements since they don’t act on 
them. Under the correspondence from the State DOT, the gun club gets a lease at fair market value. The annual 
lease is $4,500. 
 
Frohnapfel said they were at just the beginning of parking issues in Cordova. He notices that every time 
something goes on at the Pioneer building or at the Cordova Center, he has a parking lot. 
 
Bailer said that they need to think about parking on Main Street with the lots for disposal. He was not aware of 
the gun club’s lease.  
 
Baenen agreed with Pegau; he has also been down there. 
 
J. Greenwood asked to have something on the next agenda about quasi-judicial decisions and what the 
commission’s responsibilities are. 
 
McGann said that in the meeting with Holly Wells, City Attorney, she talked about how if you make a motion 
you can’t argue against the motion. He asked if the commission was going to start following that rule or making 
their own rule. Stavig said that is just one of those things that happens at meetings and that you’re technically 
not supposed to make a motion and speak against it. You can second a motion and speak against it.  
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

 

M/McGann S/Baenen to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 8:35 PM. 
With no objection, the meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

8 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes 
May 19, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 

Approved: 
 
 

____________________________ 
John Greenwood, Chair 

 
 

____________________________ 
Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

9 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Public Hearing - Minutes 

May 27, 2015  
Page 1 of 1 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING 

MAY 27, 2015 AT 12:00 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 MINUTES  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairman John Greenwood called the Planning Commission Public Hearing to order at 12:00 PM on May 27, 

2015 in the Library Meeting Room. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Present for roll call were Chairman John Greenwood and Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, Scott 

Pegau, John Baenen, Allen Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel. 

 

Also present were City Planner, Samantha Greenwood, and Assistant Planner, Leif Stavig. 

 

5 people were in the audience. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

a. Variance Request – Thomas Wall 

 

Thomas Wall, 1865 Ike Stone Road, Monroe, Georgia; said he appreciated the commission having a 

meeting to consider the variance. They are anxious to get to work. 

 

 M/Frohnapfel to recess. 

With no objection, the meeting was recessed. 

 

J. Greenwood called the Public Hearing back to order at 12:15 PM. 

 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

 

M/McGann S/Pegau to adjourn the Public Hearing at 12:15 PM. 

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 

____________________________ 

John Greenwood, Chair 

 

 

____________________________ 

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

10 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Special Meeting - Minutes 

May 27, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING 

MAY 27, 2015 AT 12:15 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 MINUTES  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairman John Greenwood called the Planning Commission Special Meeting to order at 12:15 PM on May 27, 

2015 in the Library Meeting Room. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Present for roll call were Chairman John Greenwood and Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, Scott 

Pegau, John Baenen, Allen Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel. 

 

Also present were City Planner, Samantha Greenwood, and Assistant Planner, Leif Stavig. 

 

5 people were in the audience. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

M/Bailer S/Baenen to approve the agenda for May 27th. 

Upon voice vote, motion passed 7-0. 

Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

4. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

Baenen said that his property borders the subdivision request. There was consensus that Baenen had no 

conflict of interest. 

 

Bailer said that he was within 300 feet of the subdivision. There was consensus that Bailer did not have a 

conflict of interest. 

 

5. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

 

a. Audience Comments regarding agenda items 

 

6. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 

a. Variance Request – Thomas Wall 

 

M/Pegau S/Bailer to grant the variance request from Thomas Wall for a variance from the rear yard 

requirement of 60 feet as contained in the staff report. 

 

Pegau said that he sees no problem with the variance as the lots are very large. He thinks it does meet all 

four requirements. Frohnapfel said that he also supports the variance request. He asked that they add as a 

finding for approving the variance that building permits were issued in 2008 and 2013 and that the moving 

of the pad would be a hardship under the second variance requirement. Roemhildt said that he was in 

concurrence with the commission and that the request meets all of the criteria.  

 

Upon voice vote, main motion passed 7-0. 

Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

11 of 102

planner2
Draft



Planning Commission Special Meeting - Minutes 

May 27, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 

a. Final Plat Request for ‘Subdivision of US Survey 901’ 

 

M/Pegau S/Bailer to approve the final plat request for ‘Subdivision of US Survey 901.’ 

 

Pegau said that it appears that everything requested was completed and that it makes sense to move 

forward with it. Baenen agreed. J. Greenwood appreciated Borer answering their requests so they could 

move forward. 

 

Upon voice vote, main motion passed 7-0. 

Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

8. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 

Borer thanked the commission. 

 

9. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 

McGann said he hated variances because they are so subjective. 

 

Bailer gave condolences to Borer’s family.  

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

M/Bailer to adjourn the Special Meeting at 12:26 PM. 

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 

____________________________ 

John Greenwood, Chair 

 

 

____________________________ 

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

12 of 102

planner2
Draft



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

13 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

14 of 102



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9
, 2

01
5

15
 o

f 1
02



Planner’s Report 

 

To:  Planning Commission 

From:  Planning Staff 

Date:  6/4/2015 

Re:  Recent Activities and Updates 

  

 

• One building permit issued since last Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

• Paving ITB for Nicholoff and Harbor Loop - Bids due June 11th. 

• Worked with Wilson Construction and Sentec Engineer on ADOT permit for Lake Ave for Safe 

Routes to School project. Project is slated to start week of the 8th. Sent letters to residents on 3rd 

street notifying them of the start of construction. 

• Mobile Grid lease with option to purchase will be ready to sign the week of the 8th. 

• Tidelands request has moved from the agency review phase to the preliminary decision phase. 

• Chapter 5.22 code changes will become effective the week of the June 8th. 

• Met with Rich, Weston and Cathy on RFP for Museum/Library buildings and will develop rough 

draft in next couple of weeks. 

• Survey has been ordered and working with assessor on property for lot to define green belt and lot 

that will be sold. 

• Wildflower seed mix thrown on Adams ROW by pool.  Native rose plants will be picked up from 

Anchorage the June 17th. 

• Land Use Permit issued for AML to use end of Haida ROW for storage and PWSSC for trapping 

and banding sea gulls on City property. 

• Develop message for utility bills, e-news, and web page about putting FOG – Fats, Oils and 

Grease and wipes in sewer. In the last couple of months the City has unplugged 3 sewer lines due 

to grease and wipes. Message went out in utility. 

• 6/3 City Council meeting -Lot 4a, Block 5 NFDP Addn#2 proposal was denied; Lot 13 Block 12 

Original Townsite passed, Disposal of Tract 1A, Ocean Dock Addn# 2 passed. 

• Attached to the Planner’s Report is a spreadsheet that defines what actions the commission takes 

that are quasi-judicial and what are legislative. It also lists the applicable section of the code.   

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

16 of 102



P&Z Action Quasi-judicial Legislative

P&Z decision-

appealable to CC

Recommendation to 

City Council Code Section 

Variance Yes Yes No 18.64.020

Exceptions Yes Yes No 18.64.010

Conditional Use permit Yes Yes No 18.60

Site Plan Yes NA Yes 18.48

Preliminary Plats Yes NA Yes 17.08

Final Plats Yes Yes Yes 17.12.040B

Code Change -zoning Yes NA Yes 18.72

Zoning boundary Yes NA Yes 18.72

Vacation of ROW Yes NA Yes 13.24

Adminstrative Appeal Yes Yes No 18.64.040

Sale of City Property Yes No Yes 5.22

300

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

17 of 102



Review of Proposal for Breakwater Fill Lot 
Page 1 of 2 

Memorandum 

 
To:  Planning Commission 

From:  Planning Staff 
Date:  6/4/15 
Re:  Review of Proposal for Breakwater Fill Lot 
    

 

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Requested Actions: Review Proposal and give a recommendation to City Council 
Legal Description: Portions of Lot 1 & 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park and a portion of 

ATS 220 herein referred to as the “Breakwater Fill Lot” 
Parcel Number: 02-059-230 
Zoning: Unzoned; to be zoned Waterfront Industrial District or Waterfront Commercial 

Park District 
Lot Area:  Pad is approximately 19,000 sq. ft. 
Attachments:  Proposal Packet (The packet distributed to potential proposers) 
   Proposal from George and Carrie Daskalos 

 

The public notice period for this property disposal began April 21st and ended June 1st at 10 AM. The City 
received one proposal for the property.  
 
The proposed price from George and Carrie Daskalos is $300,000.00 (minimum bid = $300,000.00). 
 
In accordance with the Cordova Municipal Code, the Planning Commission will give a recommendation 
to City Council on the proposal.  

 

PART II – APPLICABLE CRITERIA 

 

Chapter 5.22.030 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – Council 
approval required. 

 
A. All disposals of interests in city real property are subject to council approval. 

B. If the city solicits bids or proposals for a disposal of an interest in city real property, the council 

either shall: 

1. Award the disposal to the best bidder or proposer in accordance with the criteria in the invitation 

for bids or proposals, or 

2. If the council finds it to be in the best interest of the city to do so, reject any or all bids or 

proposals. 

 
Chapter 5.22.060 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – Methods of 

disposal for fair market value. 
 

 D. A request for proposals to lease or purchase city real property shall specify the criteria upon which 

proposals shall be evaluated, which may include without limitation the type of proposed development and 

its benefit to the community, the qualifications and organization of the proposer, the value of the 

proposed improvements to the real property, and the required rent or purchase price. All proposals 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

18 of 102



Review of Proposal for Breakwater Fill Lot 
Page 2 of 2 

submitted in response to a request for proposals shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which 

shall recommend a proposal to the city council for award. 

 

PART III – SUGGESTED MOTION 

 
“I move to recommend City Council approve the proposal from George and Carrie Daskalos for the 
Breakwater Fill Lot.” 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

19 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

20 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

21 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

22 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

23 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

24 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

25 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

26 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

27 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

28 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

29 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

30 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

31 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

32 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

33 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

34 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

35 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

36 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

37 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

38 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

39 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

40 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

41 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

42 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

43 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

44 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

45 of 102



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

46 of 102



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

47 of 102



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9
, 2

01
5

48
 o

f 1
02



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

49 of 102



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

50 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

51 of 102



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9
, 2

01
5

52
 o

f 1
02



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

53 of 102



Resolution 15-09 – Reducing Ground Snow Load Requirement  
Page 1 of 2 

Memorandum 

 

To:  Planning Commission 

From:  Planning Staff 

Date:  6/4/15 

Re:  Resolution 15-09 – Reducing Ground Snow Load Requirement 

    

 

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

At the last Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission requested that staff bring forward a code 

change for the snow load. 

 

The code change within the ordinance for City Council will be as follows (added language bold and 

underlined, removed language stricken out): 

 

16.15.2305(d) - Snow loads.  

 

Delete the last sentence in the second paragraph and substitute the following: 

 

 (i) The minimum basic design snow load shall be 100 pounds per square foot on the horizontal 

projection of the roof for building permits issued or required prior to September 1, 2012. 

 

 (ii) The minimum basic design snow load shall be 150 pounds per square foot ground snow load for 

construction requiring or issued a building permit on or after September 1, 2012. 

The minimum basic design snow load shall be 100 pounds per square foot ground snow load. 

 

Because the code change language is not contained in the resolution, the commission can provide 

guidance to staff during discussion if they would like any changes. 

 

Attached following Resolution 15-09 are historical documents relating to the snow load requirement, 

arranged chronologically: 

 Attachment A: Excerpt from Minutes of 4/10/12 Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

 Attachment B: Ground Snow Load Analysis prepared by Steve “Hoots” Witsoe 

Attachment C: Excerpt from Minutes of 5/8/12 Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

 Attachment D: Resolution 12-03 

 Attachment E: Excerpt from Minutes of 5/14/12 City Council Special Meeting 

 Attachment F: Ordinance 1095 

 Attachment G: Snow Load Review Report by Andrew Adams, PE Consulting Engineer 

 Attachment H: Cost Comparison for Trusses 

 Attachment I: Excerpt from Minutes of 12/9/14 Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

 

PART II – BACKGROUND 

 

4/10/12 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission had a discussion on the snow 

load requirements for Cordova. See attached minutes. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

54 of 102



Resolution 15-09 – Reducing Ground Snow Load Requirement  
Page 2 of 2 

5/8/12 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission had Steve “Hoots” Witsoe 

prepare a report and give a recommendation concerning snow load. The commission went on to 

pass Resolution 12-03 recommending the change in snow load to City Council. See attached 

minutes and resolution. 

 

5/14/12 – At the City Council Special Meeting, the council accepted the resolution from the Planning 

Commission. See attached minutes for the discussion. 

 

6/20/12 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council passed the first reading of Ordinance 1095, an 

ordinance increasing the ground snow load to 150 lbs. per square foot. The ordinance was passed 

in the consent calendar with no discussion. 

 

7/5/12 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council passed the second reading of the ordinance 

with no discussion. 

 

12/9/14 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission received a report 

prepared by Andrew Adams, PE Consulting Engineer, concerning the snow load and a price 

comparison for trusses. Both documents are attached. The commission then had a discussion on 

the snow load requirements. See attached minutes. 

 

PART III – SUGGESTED MOTION 

 

“I move to approve Resolution 15-09.” 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

55 of 102



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION 15-09 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA, RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA TO AMEND SUBSECTION 16.15.2305(d) OF THE CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 

IN ORDER TO REDUCE THE GROUND SNOW LOAD REQUIREMENT FROM 150 POUNDS 

PER SQUARE FOOT TO 100 POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT  

  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that the financial costs are significant for  

meeting the ground snow load of 150 pounds per square foot; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that a ground snow load of 100 pounds per 

square foot is sufficient enough to ensure structural stability for the conditions in the City of Cordova ; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2009 International Building Code requires a ground snow load of 100 pounds per 

square foot; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that the proposed amendments are in 

accordance with the purpose of Title 18; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommend to City Council to accept the proposed 

amendments. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 

Cordova, Alaska hereby recommend to the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to amend 

Subsection 16.15.2305(d) of the Cordova Municipal Code in order to reduce the ground snow load 

requirement from 150 pounds per square foot to 100 pounds per square foot.  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 9TH DAY OF JUNE, 2015 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       John Greenwood, Chair    

           

ATTEST: 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

56 of 102

planner2
Draft



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

57 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

58 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

59 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

60 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

61 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

62 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

63 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

64 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

65 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

66 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

67 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

68 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

69 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

70 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

71 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

72 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

73 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

74 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

75 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

76 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

77 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

78 of 102



Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District  
Page 1 of 6 

Memorandum 

 

To:  Planning Commission 

From:  Planning Staff 

Date:  6/4/2015 

Re:  Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District 

      

 

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

3/10/2015 P&Z requested a work session for 18.39 

 

3/31/2015 Special meeting Chapter 18.39 was reviewed and edited. It was decided not to change the 

boundaries of  Water Front Commercial Park. It was also decided not to change the name of the district to 

Harbor Services. The Commission did feel that language that had been developed for the harbor service 

district was applicable for the WCP and wanted to incorporate some of that language into their edits.  

 

4/15/2015 P&Z revision were reviewed, additional changes were made. Item was referred to staff to add 

the definition of mean maximum roof height  and allow commissioners time to consider the impacts of  non-

conforming that the code change would imply.   
 

Attached is the code with the changes incorporated from the 4/14/2015 meeting.  

 

Below are the definitions that will be changed or added to in 18.08 which is the section in chapter 18 

where definitions are generally found. 

 

18.08 Definitions 

 

Business services is a general term that describes work that supports a business but does not produce a 

tangible commodity 

Motel provides travelers with lodging and free parking facilities and delete the current definition  

 

Hotel is any building or group of buildings designed or intended to be used for the purpose of offering to 

the general public food or lodging, or both, on a day-to-day. 

Setback the distance from property line within which building is prohibited 

Setback the distance of a structure or other feature (for example a well or septic system) from the 

property line or other feature 

 

The code change was referred back to staff to add the definition of mean roof height but was clarified as 

Grade plane and building height as described by the IBC.  This change was proposed by Mr. McGann at 

this meeting and during previous code discussions.  Below is a summary of his proposed changes and 

how that effects the overall section of code 

 
These are the definitions which are in the IBC chapter 5, section 502.1.  Attached to this memo is that 

section from the IBC which further explains these terms.  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

79 of 102



Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District  
Page 2 of 6 

GRADE PLANE. A reference plane representing the average of finished ground level adjoining 

the building at exterior walls. Where the finished ground level slopes away from the exterior 

walls, the reference plane shall be established by the lowest points within the area between the 

building and the lot line or, where the lot line is more than 6 feet (1829 mm) from the building, 

between the building and a point 6 feet (1829 mm) from the building. 

 

 

HEIGHT, BUILDING. The vertical distance from grade plane to the average height of the 

highest roof surface. 

 

Currently state law requires commercial buildings to be built to the 2009  IBC code but our local 

amendment in the zoning code restricts the height  in each commercial/industrial  district and defines how 

the city  measure the building height.  The city codes defines the building height as  

"Building height" means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of the roof.  

The definition for grade is  

“Grade" or "ground level" means the average level of the finished ground at the center of all walls 

to a building. In case walls are parallel to and within five feet of a public sidewalk, the ground level 

shall be measured at the sidewalk. 

 

When site plan reviews are done the above is used.  This is also how residential roof heights are measured 

for building permits.  

 

After reviewing the definitions form the IBC and talking with Mr. McGann if these definitions are added 

to the section or the chapter it would affect the current height requirements.  Since the average height 

would be used as the building height potentially the highest point of the roof could be taller the current 

restriction in waterfront commercial of 30 feet.  

 

At this meeting the above change needs to be discussed and a decision made.  If this definition is added to 

18.08 Definitions than all of chapter 18 will be held to the definitions, while we don’t usually put 

definitions into the sections of the chapters we could put these two IBC definitions in the Waterfront 

commercial section, 

 

Below is the section of code that if changed as shown below would produce nonconforming buildings in 

the waterfront commercial district. I have left all the information that was provided at the April 14, 2015 

meeting in this memo for your review.  

 

18.39.070 - Minimum setback requirements 

This topic was a sticking point we agreed to change the wording to as it is below but there was uncertainty 

about the impact of the current buildings becoming non-conforming.  I have left the information that was 

provided to the board at the previous meeting for review.  At this meeting if the board wants to move 

forward a decision will need to be made on adding Section 18.56.020-Yards does not apply in WCP. Which 

would eliminate these requirements 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

80 of 102



Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District  
Page 3 of 6 

18.56.020 - Yards.  

Where yards are required they shall not be less in depth or width than the minimum dimensions in any part and they 

shall be at every point open and unobstructed from the ground to the sky, except as follows:  

A.  Outside stairways, fire escapes, porches or landing places, if unroofed and unenclosed, may extend 

into a required side yard for a distance not to exceed three feet or into a required rear yard and a 

distance not to exceed four feet.  

 

B.  Cornices, canopies, eaves or other similar architectural features not providing additional floor space 

within the building may extend into a required yard not to exceed two feet.  

 

 

C.  One covered but unenclosed passenger landing or carport not more than one story in height may 

extend into either side yard, but such structure shall not be closer than three feet to an adjoining lot.  

 

 

18.39.070 - Minimum setback requirements.  

The following are the minimum setback requirements in the WCP district: Section 18.56.020-
Yards does not apply in WCP.  

A. Front yard, fifteen feet 

B. Side yard, five feet 

C. Rear yard, five feet. 

If we make the change above this will place the majority of properties in the South fill into the 

nonconforming structure category. Below is an explanation of nonconforming 

A nonconforming use is a use of property that was allowed under the zoning regulations at the time 

the use was established but which, because of subsequent changes in those regulations, is no longer 

a permitted use. A nonconforming structure is a structure that complied with zoning and 

development regulations at the time it was built but which, because of subsequent changes to the 

zoning and/or development regulations, no longer fully complies with those regulations. A 

nonconforming lot is one that, at the time of its establishment, met the minimum lots size 

requirements for the zone in which it is located but which, because of subsequent changes to the 

minimum lot size applicable to that zone, is now smaller than that minimum lot size.  State law does 

not regulate nonconforming uses, structures, or lots. So, local jurisdictions are free, within certain 

constitutional limits, to establish their own standards for regulation of these nonconforming 

situations. 

IF these buildings do become nonconforming, then the nonconforming section of code has to be applied to 

future building requests. Below is the current city code. 

 

Chapter 18.52 - NONCONFORMING USES  

18.52.010 - Conditions for continuation.  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

81 of 102



Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District  
Page 4 of 6 

Any otherwise lawful use of land, structure, building or premises (including parking areas), 

existing at the time the ordinance codified in this title became effective, but not conforming to the 

provisions hereof, may be continued, provided:  

A. That if such nonconforming use is discontinued for a period of over ninety days or is abandoned, 
the use of such land thereafter shall be subject to the provisions of this title;  

B. That no conforming building or building used for a nonconforming use shall be added to, structurally 
altered, or enlarged in any manner, except as required by another ordinance of the city or by state 
law, or in order to bring the building, or its use into full conformity with the provisions of this title or 
Title 16  

C. That no conforming use occupying a conforming building or portion thereof, or occupying any land, 
shall be enlarged or extended into any other portion of such building or land not actually so occupied 
at the effective date of the ordinance codified in this title;  

D. In cases where a variance is sought from Chapter 18.52, nonconforming single-family buildings 
shall be exempt from section 18.64.020(A)(2)(a) of this title;  

E. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent general maintenance on a nonconforming 
building or building housing a nonconforming use.  

18.52.020 - Conditions for occupation or use.  

Any building or portion thereof in existence prior to the effective date of this ordinance which is 

specifically designed or arranged to be lawfully occupied or used in a manner not conforming to 

the provisions of this title may thereafter be so occupied or used, subject to the limitations set forth 

above for existing nonconforming uses. The term "in existence" shall include, for the purposes of 

this section only, any building under actual construction at such date; provided, that such building 

be completed within one year therefrom.  

18.52.030 - Damage or destruction.  
A. Except as provided in Subsection B of this section, no building which has been damaged or partially 

destroyed to the extent of more than fifty percent of its assessed value shall be repaired, moved or 
altered except in conformity with the provisions of this title.  

B. The planning commission may grant a conditional use permit for a telecommunication tower to be 
repaired or replaced without changing its location, provided that the repaired or replaced 
telecommunication tower meets all of the requirements for a conditional use permit under Section 
18.60.015, except the requirements in Section 18.60.015(C)(7) and (9).  

  

18.52.040 - Applicability.  

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to uses which become nonconforming by reason of any 

amendment to the ordinance codified in this title, as of the effective date of such amendment.  

In summary if these buildings become nonconforming due to the change of not allowing structures in the 

yard area any request to enlarge or alter the building would have to be denied, among the other restrictions 

listed above.  The applicant could ask for a variance from the nonconforming requirement or appeal to the 

P&Z board on the building official’s interpretation of the code. Although I would say this section of code 

is written in a clear manner.  

The idea of a nonconforming section of code is provide a fall back for the existing buildings to remain 

but allow for changes and updates to the city code. The theory of the zoning ordinance is that the 

nonconforming use is detrimental to some of those public interests (health, safety, morals or welfare) 

which justify the invoking of the police power. Although found to be detrimental to important public 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

82 of 102



Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District  
Page 5 of 6 

interests, nonconforming uses are allowed to continue based on the belief that it would be unfair and 

perhaps unconstitutional to require an immediate cessation of a nonconforming use. 

 I want to make clear the implications to the existing structures if the yard section of code is changed.  

 

PART V – STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff believes that either the IBC or the City Code definition would work to determine the average 

finished ground level. Staff is not in favor of using the definition of Building Height as defined in 

the IBC. This has the potential to allow buildings to be taller than the current maximum height is 

defined in code. The current way that the maximum roof height is define is simple and easily 

understood by the public when represented in site plans and building permits.  If this definition 

was placed into section 18.08 definitions then it would apply to all zoning district in chapter 18.  

 

PART VI – SUGGESTED MOTION 

“I move to approve resolution 15-06”  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

83 of 102



Resolution 15-06 – Code Change for Waterfront Commercial Park District  
Page 6 of 6 

Waterfront Commercial Zoning District 

 

 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

84 of 102



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION 15-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA, RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA TO AMEND CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 18.39 TO CHANGE THE 

REQUIREMENTS IN THE WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT AND TO 

AMEND CHAPTER 18.08 TO CHANGE AND ADD DEFINITIONS TO TITLE 18 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that the existing code for the Waterfront 

Commercial Park District is outdated and that amending the code is a benefit to the City and the citizens of 

Cordova; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that the proposed amendments are in 

accordance with the purpose of Title 18; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommend to City Council to accept the proposed 

amendments. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 

Cordova, Alaska hereby recommend to the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to amend Cordova 

Municipal Code Chapter 18.39 to change the requirements in the Waterfront Commercial Park District and 

to amend Chapter 18.08 to change and add definitions to Title 18. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 9TH DAY OF JUNE, 2015 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       John Greenwood, Chair    

           

ATTEST: 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

85 of 102

planner2
Draft



CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 1979  
Title 18 - ZONING 

Chapter 18.39 - WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances 
Page 1 of 5 

   Definitions to add or update  to 18.08 Definitions 
 
 
 

Retail business the selling of goods, wares, or merchandise directly to the ultimate consumer or persons 

without a resale license.  

 

 Business services is a general term that describes work that supports a business but does not produce a 

tangible commodity.  

 

Centers are buildings or groups that promotes culture, arts, education and research. 

 

Hotel  is a commercial establishment offering lodging to travelers and often having restaurants, meeting 

rooms, stores, etc., that are available to the general public  

Motel  provides travelers with lodging and free parking facilities 

Setback A distance from property line within which building is prohibited 

Chapter 18.39 - WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT 

Sections:  
18.39.010 - Purpose. 

18.39.020 - Permitted principal uses and structures. 

18.39.030 - Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

18.39.040 - Conditional uses. 

18.39.050 - Prohibited uses and structures. 

18.39.060 - Minimum lot requirements. 

18.39.070 - Minimum setback requirements. 

18.39.080 - Maximum height of buildings and structures. 

18.39.090 - Required off-street parking and loading. 

18.39.100 - Signs. 

18.39.110 - Drainage. 

18.39.120 - Minimum finished floor elevations. 

18.39.130 - Site plan and architectural review. 

 

18.39.010 - Purpose.  

The following statement of intent and use regulations shall apply in the WCP district: The waterfront 
commercial park district is intended to be applied to land with direct access or close proximity to 
navigable tidal waters within the city. Structures within the WCP district are to be constructed in such a 
manner as to be aesthetically consistent with, and reflect the community's marine—oriented lifestyle. 
Uses within the waterfront commercial park district are intended to be water-dependent or 
water-related, and primarily those uses that are particularly related to location, recreation or commercial 
enterprises that derive an economic or social benefit from a waterfront location.  

The purpose of the Water Front Commercial Park District is provide a mix of commercial and business 
uses, that will promote or benefit the community user either as a service, business or recreation. Uses 
within the waterfront commercial park district are intended to be water-dependent or water-related, and 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

86 of 102



CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 1979  
Title 18 - ZONING 

Chapter 18.39 - WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances 
Page 2 of 5 

primarily those uses that are particularly related to location, recreation or commercial enterprises that 
derive an economic or social benefit from a waterfront location  

 

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.020 - Permitted principal uses and structures.  

The following are the permitted principal uses and structures in the WCP district:  

A. Boat charter services; Retail Service  

B. Commercial and sport fishing supplies and services;; Business Services 

C. Docks and harbor facilities; 

D. Eating and drinking facilities; 

E. Fish and seafood markets; 

F. Fueling piers; 

G. Gift shops; 

H D.  Hotels; 

I. Laundromats and laundries; 

J. Marine-related retail and wholesale stores; 

KE. Offices buildings associated with permitted principal uses;  

L. Recreational goods sales; 

M. Travel agencies; 

N. Visitor information center; Research, educational and cultural centers – 

O. Waterfront parks, access paths, and boardwalks. 

 P    Public service and municipal buildings. 

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.030 - Permitted accessory uses and structures.  

The following are the permitted accessory uses and structures in the WCP district:  

A. Accessory buildings; 

B. Parking in conjunction with permitted principal uses and conditional uses; 

C. Outside storage; 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

87 of 102



CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 1979  
Title 18 - ZONING 

Chapter 18.39 - WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances 
Page 3 of 5 

D. Processing of seafood where no more than two thousand square feet of gross floor space of 
structure is used for processing. The smoking of seafood is prohibited.  

EB. Watchman's quarters. 

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

(Ord. No. 1073, 7-7-2010)  

18.39.040 - Conditional uses.  

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following 
uses may be permitted in the WCP district:  

A. A. Commercial Outside storage. 

B. Processing of seafood where no more than two thousand square feet of gross floor space of 
structure is used for processing. 

C. Fueling Pier 

 

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

 

18.39.050 - Prohibited uses and structures.  

Any use or structure not of a character as indicated under permitted principal uses and structures or 
permitted under conditional uses is prohibited.  

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.060 - Minimum lot requirements.  

The following are the minimum lot requirements in the WCP district:  

A. Lot width, ninety feet 

B. Lot area, nine thousand square feet. 

(Ord. 802 § 1, 1998: Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.070 - Minimum setback requirements.  

The following are the minimum setback requirements in the WCP district: Section 18.56.020-Yards 
does not apply in WCP.  

A. Front yard, fifteen feet 

B. Side yard setback, five feet 

C. Rear yard, five feet. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

88 of 102



CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 1979  
Title 18 - ZONING 

Chapter 18.39 - WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances 
Page 4 of 5 

(Ord. 802 § 2, 1998: Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.080 - Maximum height of buildings and structures.  

The following are the maximum heights of buildings and structures in the WCP district:  

A. Principal buildings and structures, 30 feet 

B. Accessory buildings and structures, 20 feet. 

(Ord. 623 § 1, 1987; Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.090 - Required off-street parking and loading.  

The requirements for off-street parking and loading in the WCP district shall be as set forth in Chapter 
18.48 of this code. In addition the following parking requirements shall apply to property in the WCP 
district:  

A. Parking areas and drives shall be limited to fifty percent of the required front 
yards to provide for landscaping, pathways, or similar nonvehicular improvements.  

B. Parking areas in required front yards shall be separated from property lines to provide for the 
delineation and limitation of access drives.  

(Ord. 802 § 3, 1998: Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.100 - Signs.  

Signs may be allowed in the WCP district subject to the supplementary district regulations, the Uniform 
Sign Code, and as set forth in Chapter 18.44 of this code.  

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.110 - Drainage.  

The developer wishing to develop land in the WCP district shall be required to submit a drainage plan. 
Such drainage plan shall address stormwater runoff from the unused portion of the lot, and roof runoff.  

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.120 - Minimum finished floor elevations.  

In the WCP district, the minimum finished floor elevations as listed shall be adhered to:  

 

South Fill Development Park Feet 

Block 1, Lot 2 24.00 

3 24.00 

5 24.00 

6 24.25 

7 25.00 

8 25.50 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

89 of 102



CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 1979  
Title 18 - ZONING 

Chapter 18.39 - WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances 
Page 5 of 5 

10 25.75 

Block 1, Lot 11 25.75 

12 25.25 

Block 2, Lot 2 25.00 

Block 2, Lot 3 25.25 

4 25.50 

5 25.75 

6 26.00 

7 26.00 

8 26.00 

9 25.75 

10 25.50 

 

Note: Elevation datum based on the following: North Bolt fire hydrant at northwest corner of intersection 
of Nicholoff Way and Railroad Avenue: Elevation 29.84 feet above M.L.L.W.  

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

18.39.130 - Site plan and architectural review.  

The development plan of any proposed development in the WCP district shall be subject to review by 
the planning commission. The architectural plans shall, in addition to requirements of Sections 
18.39.010 through 18.39.120, include the following:  

A site plan review will be required and shall comply with chapter 18.42 of this code. 

A. Exterior finish material; 

B. Color scheme. 

Exterior siding finish of structures shall be wood, stucco, brick or approved metal building material. 
Color scheme of exterior siding and roof finish shall consist of earth tones.  

(Ord. 612 (part), 1986).  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

90 of 102



GRADE PLANE. A reference plane representing the average of finished ground level adjoining 

the building at exterior walls. Where the finished ground level slopes away from the exterior 

walls, the reference plane shall be established by the lowest points within the area between the 

building and the lot line or, where the lot line is more than 6 feet (1829 mm) from the building, 

between the building and a point 6 feet (1829 mm) from the building.  

 

This term is used in the definitions of "Basement" and "Story above grade plane." It is critical in 

determining the height of a building and the number of stories, which are regulated by this 

chapter. Since the finished ground surface adjacent to the building may vary (depending on site 

conditions), the mean average taken at various points around the building constitutes the grade 

plane. One method of determining the grade plane elevation is illustrated in Figure 502.1(3), 

where the ground slopes uniformly along the length of each exterior wall.  

 

Where a site has a more complex slope, a more detailed calculation that takes into account the 

various segments of the perimeter walls must be taken. Figure 502.1(4) shows an example of a 

complex finished grade. A full calculation will show the grade plane to be at an elevation of 

498.64 feet (151 986 mm). If a calculation is done based on just the four extreme corners, grade 

plane would be thought to be 495.5 feet (151 029 mm), an error of over 3 feet (914 mm).  

 

Situations may arise where the ground adjacent to the building slopes away from the building 

because of site or landscaping considerations. In this case, the lowest finished ground level at 

any point between the building's exterior wall and a point 6 feet (1829 mm) from the building 

[or the lot line, if closer than 6 feet (1829 mm)] comes under consideration. These points are 

used to determine the elevation of the grade plane as illustrated in Figures 502.1(5) and 

502.1(6).  

 

In the context of the code, the term "grade" means the finished ground level at the exterior 

walls. While the grade plane is a hypothetical horizontal plane derived as indicated above, the 

grade is that which actually exists or is intended to exist at the completion of site work. The 

only situation where the grade plane and the grade are identical is when the site is perfectly 

level for a distance of 6 feet (1829 mm) from all exterior walls.  

 

 

HEIGHT, BUILDING. The vertical distance from grade plane to the average height of the 

highest roof surface.  

 

This definition establishes the two points of measurement that determine the height of a 

building in feet. This measurement is used to determine compliance with the building height 

limitations of Section 503.1 and Table 503, as well as other sections of the code where the 

height of the building is a factor in the requirements (for example, see Section 1406.2.2).  

 

The lower point of measurement is the grade plane (see the definition of "Grade plane"). The 

upper point of measurement is the roof surface of the building, with consideration given to 

sloped roofs (such as a hip or gable roof). In the case of sloped roofs, the average height would 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

91 of 102



be used as the upper point of measurement, rather than the eave line or the ridge line. The 

average height of the roof is the mid-height between the roof eave and the roof ridge, regardless 

of the shape of the roof.  

 

This definition also indicates that building height is measured to the highest roof surface. In the 

case of a building with multiple roof levels, the highest of the various roof levels must be used 

to determine the building height. If the highest of the various roof levels is a sloped roof, then 

the average height of that sloped roof must be used. The average height of multiple roof levels 

is not to be used to determine the building height.  

 

A penthouse is not intended to affect the measurement of building height. By definition, a 

"Penthouse" is a structure that is built above the roof of a building (see Section 1502.1) and can 

be located above the maximum allowed roof height provided it complies with the limitations of 

Section 1509.  

 

The distance that a building extends above ground also determines the relative hazards of that 

building. Simply stated, a taller building presents relatively greater safety hazards than a shorter 

building for several reasons, including fire service access and time for occupant egress. The 

code specifically defines how building height is measured to enable various code requirements, 

such as type of construction and fire suppression, to be consistent with those relative hazards 

[see Figure 502.1(7) for the computation of building height in terms of feet and stories].  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

92 of 102



 

 

 

For SI: 1 foot = 304.8 mm.  
 

Figure 502.1(3) DETERMINATION OF GRADE PLANE ELEVATION WHERE 

GRADE SLOPES UNIFORMLY ALONG THE ENTIRE LENGTH OF THE 

EXTERIOR WALLS  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

93 of 102



 

 

 

For SI: 1 inch = 25.4 mm, 1 foot = 304.8 mm.  
 

Figure 502.1(4) DETERMINATION OF GRADE PLANE ELEVATIONS WHERE 

GRADE AND EXTERIOR WALLS ARE IRREGULAR  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

94 of 102



 

 
 

 

For SI: 1 inch = 25.4 mm, 1 foot = 304.8 mm.  
 

Figure 502.1(5) DETERMINATION OF GRADE PLANE WHERE GRADE SLOPES 

AWAY FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

95 of 102



 

 

 

For SI: 1 inch = 25.4 mm, 1 foot = 304.8 mm.  
 

Figure 502.1(6) DETERMINATION OF GRADE PLANE ELEVATION WHERE 

GRADE DOES NOT SLOPE UNIFORMLY ALONG THE LENGTH OF THE 

EXTERIOR WALLS  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

96 of 102



 

 

 

For SI: 1 inch = 25.4 mm, 1 foot = 304.8 mm.  
 

Figure 502.1(7) BUILDING HEIGHT  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

97 of 102



Discussion on Resolution 15-07 
Page 1 of 2 

 

Memorandum 

 

To:  Planning Commission 

From:  Planning Staff 

Date:  6/4/2015 

Re:  Discussion on Resolution 15-07 

      

 

PART I – BACKGROUND  

The minutes are below from the P&Z meeting and the City Council meeting where the code updates were discussed.  I 

have passed the fiscal note request on to the City manager and finance director and we will be meeting to discuss it.  

City Council has requested that P&Z present them with some additional reasons why the money should be spent on 

the code change.  I have provided a couple of examples that I feel need to be updated.  At the meeting the board and 

staff will compile concerns to be presented to City Council along with the fiscal note.  We will have laptop available 

for Commissioners to add their reasoning for asking for the code update. 

 

4/10/2015 PZ meeting Code resolution requesting funds from City Council 

 
a. Resolution 15-07 – Code Updates Cost  

A resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Cordova, Alaska recommending to the City 

Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to appropriate twenty-one thousand four hundred dollars for 

editing and updating Titles 16, 17, and 18 of the Cordova Municipal Code 

 

S. Greenwood said that she needs a budget to do code work. She got a quote from Holly Wells (City 
attorney) for code work, but they need to read it closely because it is not what they just did with Waterfront 
Commercial Park District.  
 

M/Bailer S/Frohnapfel to approve Resolution 15-07 
 
Bailer asked if the changes to zoning code have to go to the lawyer. S. Greenwood said that especially 
issues with zoning need to go through the lawyer. Pegau said when they went through the code in the past 
they had made changes to zoning boundaries and requirements. S. Greenwood said that this quote does not 
include changes like that. Frohnapfel said that while it is expensive, they need to compete and let their 
quest be known to City Council. Unless they ask for it, they are never going to get it. Pegau said he really 
wants to do this, but he is worried that they are only doing a quarter of the step. The modifications that they 
made would really impact development in Cordova if it does not involve rezoning. Roemhildt asked if they 
had to go to the lawyer. Robertson said that you would not want to touch this with a 10 foot pole without a 
legal review.  
 

Upon voice vote, resolution passed 7-0. 

Yea: Greenwood, Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel 

 

5/6/2013 City Council Meeting Resolution was presented to the council under the agenda item of 

chairpersons and representatives of boards and commissions 
a. Planning and Zoning Commission Resolution 15-07 – Mayor Kacsh asked Bailer to report on the 

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, and this resolution they put forward to Council. Bailer said 
he doesn’t support this resolution. Bourgeois said this was included as informational, a 
recommendation from P&Z which it is appropriate to bring forward to Council in Resolution form. She 
anticipated that it would be for Council to then direct staff to bring something to a future Council 
meeting regarding this recommendation. Bailer opined that he is in disagreement with needing to use a 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

98 of 102



Discussion on Resolution 15-07 
Page 2 of 2 

 

lawyer with all of this. He said the commission has done a lot of work and some of these code changes 
are small, easy changes – he doesn’t see the need for a lawyer to do this. Mayor Kacsh said we had 
spent $50K/ year for a couple of years to get major portions of code thoroughly looked at and reworded 
and simplified by the City Attorney and this is P&Z asking for out-of-cycle budgeting for more of that. 
He believes it should come back as a resolution with a budget amendment and a fiscal note so Council 
could take action on it. Hallquist wanted more clarification from P&Z on what exactly was necessary 
as far as code changes, why spend this money, what are we changing that doesn’t work for us, are there 
things we are getting sued all the time over. Bourgeois said it is time, effort and standing in the way of 
development. Items have been denied, referred, meetings have been lengthy, items come before 
Council, get sent back to staff or back to P&Z and these are the issues that proper codes could remedy. 
Bailer said, if you could give an example of standing in the way of development…Mayor Kacsh and 
Bourgeois both said the Roemhildt development was referred and then he drastically reduced his 
development plan over that lost time. Bailer said he wanted to build something against code which is 
totally different. Bourgeois asked exactly what the direction was to staff, she expressed frustration at 
the fact that only 4 Council members were present and she feared wasted staff time developing this to 
present to Council and then Council might very well shoot this down – of course she did say that staff 
would bring this back if that was the direction. Mayor Kacsh said, yes, please bring a resolution 
amending the budget with a fiscal note to allow for this expenditure for code change. Further input 
from Council gave staff direction to get the exact reasons from the P&Z Commission. 

 

Chapter 16 building codes 

The State does not adopt a residential code; if we want to adopt IRC needs to be done in city code 

Amendments to Uniform building code need to be updated -16.20-45 to current code sections 

Chapter 17 subdivision  

Needs short plat section & replats 

Chapter 18 Zoning 

Permitted Uses are outdated – for example- Truck gardening, rooming house, curb line to measure yards. 

Exception, variance and appeals and nonconforming section needs review and updating for clarity and strict 

interpretation as written 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

99 of 102



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 9, 2015

100 of 102



 6/4/2015 10:19 AM

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

June 2015

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

July 2015June 2015

May 31 Jun 1 2 3 4 5 6

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (Library)

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

5:00pm Library Board 

(Library)

6:30pm Planning 

Commission Public 

Hearing (Library)

6:45pm Planning 

Commission Regular 

(Library)

7:00pm Harbor 

Commission Regular 

(City Hall)

7:00pm School Board 

Regular (High School)

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

6:45pm City Council 

Public Hearing (Library)

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (Library)

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 Jul 1 2 3 4

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

101 of 102



 6/4/2015 10:19 AM

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

July 2015

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August 2015July 2015

Jun 28 29 30 Jul 1 2 3 4

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (Library)

City Closed - Independence

Day

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

7:00pm Harbor 

Commission Regular 

(City Hall)

7:00pm School Board 

Regular (High School)

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

6:30pm Planning 

Commission Regular 

(Library)

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (Library)

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31 Aug 1

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
JU

N
E

 9, 2015

102 of 102


	06-09-15 Agenda
	05-19-15 Public Hearing Minutes
	05-19-15 Regular Meeting Minutes
	05-27-15 Public Hearing Minutes
	05-27-15 Special Meeting Minutes
	DNR for Packet
	6_9_2015 Planners Report
	Actions
	Worksheets
	Sheet1


	Breakwater Fill Lot Memo
	Proposal Form for Breakwater Fill LotPACKET
	Proposal From Daskalos
	Snow LoadMemo
	15-09
	ATTACHMENTSFORPACKET
	15-06 memo
	15-06
	Chapter_18.39_WATERFRONT_COMMERCIAL_PARK_DISTRICT
	GRADE PLANE
	Discussion on 15-07
	15-07 Approved
	Monthly Style

